
 

 

 

Clarification No 4 
 

Related to Call for Proposals GSA/GRANT/EGNOS/03/2014 “Call For Proposals for the Acceleration 
of EGNOS adoption in the field of civil aviation” 

 
 

1. Question: Would you please clarify the following: 

a) B3 form – is there an official definition of a public body? Does a public airport as a 

limited company but owned by the government and run with public money considered 

as a public body? 

b) B5 form – Who is the data controller mentioned in the signature section? 

c) B2 form – Does the terminology "Action" / "Work Programme" equal to "Project" in 

term of scope ? 

 

Answers:  

a) ‘Public body’ means any legal entity established as public body by national law or an 
international organisation.  Established as ‘public body by national law’ means: incorporated 
as a public body in the act of creation or recognised as a public body by national law and 
governed by public law. 
 

Public bodies may act under and be subject to private law for some or most of their 

activities. A legal entity that has a public service mission but which was established under 

private law is not considered to be a public body. 

b) The data controller mentioned refers to the GSA – the template has now been updated 
as “corrigendum”. The submission of the old template however will still be considered 
valid. Applicants who already filled in/submitted the old template do not have to submit 
the corrected form. 

c) The three terms equally refer to the proposal in its entirety submitted and selected by 
the GSA in response to the RfP. 

2. Question: “Would you please clarify the following question? Is a consortium led by only an 
ANSP and a partner (being an Aviation R&D institute) eligible for Area A activities? For 
reasons of efficiency the airports themselves are formally not a partner but will provide 
input where required and will be consulted.  This also applies to the local CAA. The aim is to 
publish in AIP several LPV SBAS procedures. 

Section 6.1 of the CfP states: “for areas A and B they are submitted by at least one entity 
representing Air Navigation Service Providers (ANSPs) or  Aerodromes/heliports/helipads;” 

a. We interpret this as: an ANSP or airport operator submits the proposal and is also lead 

coordinator. Is this correct? 

               b. Can the lead coordinator delegate project management to a partner?” 
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Answer to a.:  The section stipulates minimum requirements to be fulfilled. In the given 
example an ANSP or airport operator participating in the proposal is sufficient – the 
requirement is fulfilled. 
Answer to b.:  The lead applicant (coordinator) is not allowed to delegate project 

management to a co-applicant (consortium partner) because of the nature of the duties.  


